

H.B. No. 0218**Motor vehicles-registration fees.**

Sponsored By: Joint Appropriations Committee

AN ACT relating to motor vehicle registration; increasing vehicle registration fees and a related tax as specified; and providing for an effective date.

1/23/2017 Bill Number Assigned
1/24/2017 H Received for Introduction
1/24/2017 H Introduced and Referred to H02 - Appropriations
1/26/2017 H02 - Appropriations:Recommend Do Pass 7-0-0-0-0

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Representative(s) Burkhart, Larsen, Nicholas, Schwartz, Sommers, Walters, Wilson

Ayes 7 **Nays** 0 **Excused** 0 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

1/26/2017 H Placed on General File
1/27/2017 H COW:Passed
1/30/2017 H 2nd Reading:Passed
1/31/2017 H 3rd Reading:Passed 44-16-0-0-0

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Representative(s) Allen, Blackburn, Blake, Bovee, Brown, Burkhart, Byrd, Clausen, Connolly, Court, Crank, Dayton, Eklund, Eyre, Flitner, Freeman, Furphy, Gierau, Greear, Haley, Hallinan, Harshman, Henderson, Hunt, Kinner, Kirkbride, Larsen, Laursen, Lindholm, Loucks, MacGuire, Madden, Nicholas, Northrup, Obermueller, Paxton, Pelkey, Pownall, Schwartz, Sommers, Sweeney, Walters, Wilson, Zwonitzer

Nays: Representative(s) Baker, Barlow, Biteman, Clem, Edwards, Gray, Halverson, Jennings, Lone, McKim, Miller, Olsen, Piiparinen, Salazar, Steinmetz, Winters

Ayes 44 **Nays** 16 **Excused** 0 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

1/31/2017 S Received for Introduction
2/1/2017 S Introduced and Referred to S03 - Revenue
2/10/2017 S03 - Revenue:Recommend Amend and Do Pass 4-1-0-0-0

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Senator(s) Case, Ellis, Peterson, Wasserburger

Nays: Senator Kinskey

Ayes 4 **Nays** 1 **Excused** 0 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

2/10/2017 S Placed on General File

HB0218SS001/ADOPTED

Page 3-lines 11 through 14 Delete and insert:

"Section 2. This act is effective July 1, 2017.". PETERSON,
CHAIRMAN

2/27/2017 S COW:Passed

HB0218S2001/ADOPTED

Page 1-line 2 After "fees" insert "and a related tax".
Page 1-line 8 Delete "is" insert "and 31-18-401(a)(ii)(A) and

(iii) are".

Page 2-line 4 Delete "25.00" insert "30.00".

Page 2-line 17 Delete "10.00" insert "5.00".

Page 3-line 3 Delete "60.00" insert "50.00".

Page 3-line 6 Delete "80.00" insert "70.00".

Page 3-line 9 Delete "120.00" insert "90.00".

Page 3-after line 9 Insert:

"31-18-401. Registration fees.

(a) Except as otherwise provided, the following fees shall accompany each application for the registration of a commercial vehicle:

(ii) A state registration fee computed as follows:

(A) Commercial vehicles except passenger cars, school buses, house trailers and motorcycles for which the fees shall be computed as provided by W.S. 31-3-101(a)(ii) based on gross vehicle weight pursuant to the following table:

GROSS VEHICLE OR GROSS COMBINATION VEHICLE WEIGHT IN POUNDS	FEE
26,000 - or less	\$180.00 207.00
26,001 - 28,000	195.00 224.25
28,001 - 30,000	210.00 241.50
30,001 - 32,000	225.00 258.75
32,001 - 34,000	250.00 287.50
34,001 - 36,000	275.00 316.25
36,001 - 38,000	300.00 345.00
38,001 - 40,000	325.00 373.75
40,001 - 42,000	350.00 402.50
42,001 - 44,000	375.00 431.25
44,001 - 46,000	400.00 460.00
46,001 - 48,000	425.00 488.75
48,001 - 50,000	450.00 517.50
50,001 - 52,000	475.00 546.25
52,001 - 54,000	500.00 575.00
54,001 - 55,000	512.50 589.38
55,001 - 56,000	525.00 603.75
56,001 - 58,000	550.00 632.50
58,001 - 60,000	575.00 661.25
60,001 - 62,000	600.00 690.00
62,001 - 64,000	625.00 718.75
64,001 - 66,000	650.00 747.50
66,001 - 68,000	675.00 776.25
68,001 - 70,000	700.00 805.00
70,001 - 72,000	725.00 833.75
72,001 - 74,000	750.00 862.50
74,001 - 76,000	775.00 891.25
76,001 - 78,000	800.00 920.00
78,001 - 80,000	825.00 948.75

For weights over eighty thousand (80,000) pounds, the fee shall be ~~eight hundred twenty-five dollars (\$825.00)~~ nine hundred forty-eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$948.75) plus twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each additional two thousand (2,000) pounds or fraction thereof.

(iii) Except as otherwise provided in W.S. 31-18-201(d)(iii), an equalized highway use tax collected by the department in lieu of the county registration fee imposed by paragraph (a)(i) of this section for commercial vehicles or fleets proportionally registered under W.S. 31-18-201(b)(i) and described in W.S. 31-18-

201(d)(ii) pursuant to the following table:

VEHICLE OR COMBINATION
GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT
IN POUNDS

EQUALIZED HIGHWAY
USE TAX

26,000-or less	\$ 80.00 <u>92.00</u>
26,001-28,000	100.00 <u>115.00</u>
28,001-30,000	150.00 <u>172.50</u>
30,001-32,000	200.00 <u>230.00</u>
32,001-34,000	250.00 <u>287.50</u>
34,001-36,000	300.00 <u>345.00</u>
36,001-38,000	350.00 <u>402.50</u>
38,001-40,000	400.00 <u>460.00</u>
40,001-42,000	450.00 <u>517.50</u>
42,001-44,000	500.00 <u>575.00</u>
44,001-46,000	550.00 <u>632.50</u>
46,001-48,000	600.00 <u>690.00</u>
48,001-50,000	650.00 <u>747.50</u>
50,001-52,000	700.00 <u>805.00</u>
52,001-54,000	750.00 <u>862.50</u>
54,001-56,000	800.00 <u>920.00</u>
56,001-58,000	850.00 <u>977.50</u>
58,001-60,000	900.00 <u>1,035.00</u>
60,001-62,000	950.00 <u>1,092.50</u>
62,001-64,000	1,000.00 <u>1,150.00</u>
64,001-66,000	1,050.00 <u>1,207.50</u>
66,001-68,000	1,100.00 <u>1,265.00</u>
68,001-70,000	1,150.00 <u>1,322.50</u>
70,001-72,000	1,200.00 <u>1,380.00</u>
72,001-74,000	1,250.00 <u>1,437.50</u>
74,001-76,000	1,300.00 <u>1,495.00</u>
76,001-78,000	1,350.00 <u>1,552.50</u>
78,001-80,000	1,400.00 <u>1,610.00</u>

For weights over eighty thousand (80,000) pounds, the tax under this paragraph shall be ~~one thousand four hundred dollars (\$1,400.00)~~ one thousand six hundred ten dollars (\$1,610.00) plus fifty dollars (\$50.00) for each additional two thousand (2,000) pounds or fraction thereof." DRISKILL

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Senator(s) Agar, Anderson, Anselmi-Dalton, Baldwin, Bebout, Boner, Bouchard, Burns, Case, Christensen, Coe, Dockstader, Driskill, Ellis, Emerich, Hastert, Hicks, Kinskey, Landen, Meier, Moniz, Nethercott, Pappas, Perkins, Peterson, Rothfuss, Scott, Von Flatern, Wasserburger

Nays: Senator Barnard

Ayes 29 **Nays** 1 **Excused** 0 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

HB0218S2002/WITHDRAWN

2/28/2017 S 2nd Reading:Passed

HB0218S3001/FAILED

Page 2-line 4

Delete the Driskill second reading amendment (HB0218S2001/A) to this line and further amend as follows: delete "25.00" insert "20.00".
SCOTT

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Senator(s) Case, Hicks, Moniz, Scott

Nays: Senator(s) Agar, Anderson, Anselmi-Dalton, Baldwin, Barnard, Bebout, Boner, Bouchard, Burns, Christensen, Coe, Dockstader, Driskill, Ellis, Emerich, Kinskey, Landen, Meier, Nethercott, Pappas, Perkins, Peterson, Rothfuss, Von Flatern, Wasserburger

Excused: Senator Hastert

Ayes 4 **Nays** 25 **Excused** 1 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

HB0218S3002/FAILED

Page 2-line 20 Delete "30.00" insert "25.00".

Page 2-line 23 Delete "40.00" insert "35.00".

Page 3-line 3 Delete the Driskill second reading amendment
(HB0218S2001/A) to this line and further amend
as follows: delete "60.00" insert "45.00".

Page 3-line 6 Delete the Driskill second reading amendment (HB0218S2001/A) to this line and further amend as follows: delete "80.00" insert "65.00".

Page 3-line 9 Delete the Driskill second reading amendment
(HB0218S2001/A) to this line and further amend
as follows: delete "120.00" insert "85.00". VON
FLATERN, BEBOUT

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Senator(s) Bebout, Case, Hicks, Kinskey, Moniz, Perkins, Scott, Von Flatern

Nays: Senator(s) Agar, Anderson, Anselmi-Dalton, Baldwin, Barnard, Boner, Bouchard, Burns, Christensen, Coe, Dockstader, Driskill, Ellis, Emerich, Landen, Meier, Nethercott, Pappas, Peterson, Rothfuss, Wasserburger

Excused: Senator Hastert

Ayes 8 **Nays** 21 **Excused** 1 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

3/1/2017 S 3rd Reading:Passed 16-13-1-0-0

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Senator(s) Anderson, Anselmi-Dalton, Baldwin, Barnard, Boner, Burns, Coe, Emerich, Landen, Nethercott, Pappas, Perkins, Peterson, Rothfuss, Von Flatern, Wasserburger

Nays: Senator(s) Agar, Bebout, Bouchard, Case, Christensen, Dockstader, Driskill, Ellis, Hicks, Kinskey, Meier, Moniz, Scott

Excused: Senator Hastert

Ayes 16 **Nays** 13 **Excused** 1 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

3/2/2017 H Received for Concurrence

3/2/2017 H Concur:Failed 15-43-2-0-0

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Representative(s) Burkhardt, Byrd, Connolly, Eklund, Gierau, Haley, Kirkbride, Larsen, Madden, Nicholas, Paxton, Pelkey, Schwartz, Sommers, Sweeney

Nays: Representative(s) Allen, Baker, Barlow, Biteman, Blackburn, Blake, Bovee, Brown, Clausen, Clem, Court, Crank, Dayton, Edwards, Eyre, Flitner, Freeman, Furphy, Gray, Greear, Hallinan, Halverson, Henderson, Hunt, Jennings, Kinner, Laursen, Lindholm, Lone, Loucks, MacGuire, McKim, Miller, Northrup, Obermueller, Olsen, Piiparinen, Pownall, Salazar, Steinmetz, Wilson, Winters, Zwonitzer

66,001 - 68,000	675.00 742.50
68,001 - 70,000	700.00 770.00
70,001 - 72,000	725.00 797.50
72,001 - 74,000	750.00 825.00
74,001 - 76,000	775.00 852.50
76,001 - 78,000	800.00 880.00
78,001 - 80,000	825.00 907.50

For weights over eighty thousand (80,000) pounds, the fee shall be ~~eight hundred twenty-five dollars (\$825.00)~~ nine hundred forty-eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$948.75) plus twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each additional two thousand (2,000) pounds or fraction thereof.

(iii) Except as otherwise provided in W.S. 31-18-201(d)(iii), an equalized highway use tax collected by the department in lieu of the county registration fee imposed by paragraph (a)(i) of this section for commercial vehicles or fleets proportionally registered under W.S. 31-18-201(b)(i) and described in W.S. 31-18-201(d)(ii) pursuant to the following table:

VEHICLE OR COMBINATION GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT IN POUNDS	EQUALIZED HIGHWAY USE TAX
26,000-or less	\$ 80.00 88.00
26,001-28,000	100.00 110.00
28,001-30,000	150.00 165.00
30,001-32,000	200.00 220.00
32,001-34,000	250.00 275.00
34,001-36,000	300.00 330.00
36,001-38,000	350.00 385.00
38,001-40,000	400.00 440.00
40,001-42,000	450.00 495.00
42,001-44,000	500.00 550.00
44,001-46,000	550.00 605.00
46,001-48,000	600.00 660.00
48,001-50,000	650.00 715.00
50,001-52,000	700.00 770.00
52,001-54,000	750.00 825.00
54,001-56,000	800.00 880.00
56,001-58,000	850.00 935.00
58,001-60,000	900.00 990.00
60,001-62,000	950.00 1,045.00
62,001-64,000	1,000.00 1,100.00
64,001-66,000	1,050.00 1,155.00
66,001-68,000	1,100.00 1,210.00
68,001-70,000	1,150.00 1,265.00
70,001-72,000	1,200.00 1,320.00
72,001-74,000	1,250.00 1,375.00
74,001-76,000	1,300.00 1,430.00
76,001-78,000	1,350.00 1,485.00
78,001-80,000	1,400.00 1,540.00

For weights over eighty thousand (80,000) pounds, the tax under this paragraph shall be ~~one thousand four hundred dollars (\$1,400.00)~~ one thousand six hundred ten dollars (\$1,610.00) plus fifty dollars (\$50.00) for each additional two thousand (2,000) pounds or fraction thereof." LARSEN, BAKER, WALTERS, BURNS, PETERSON, DRISKILL

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Representative(s) Allen, Blake, Bovee, Brown, Burkhart, Byrd,

Clausen, Connolly, Court, Crank, Dayton, Eklund, Eyre, Flitner, Freeman, Furphy, Gierau, Greear, Haley, Hallinan, Harshman, Henderson, Hunt, Kinner, Kirkbride, Larsen, Laursen, Loucks, MacGuire, Madden, Nicholas, Obermueller, Paxton, Pelkey, Pownall, Schwartz, Sommers, Sweeney, Walters, Wilson, Winters, Zwonitzer

Nays: Representative(s) Baker, Barlow, Biteman, Blackburn, Clem, Edwards, Gray, Halverson, Jennings, Lindholm, Lone, McKim, Miller, Northrup, Olsen, Piiparinen, Salazar, Steinmetz

Ayes 42 **Nays** 18 **Excused** 0 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

3/3/2017 S Adopted HB0218JC001: 17-12-1-0-0

HB0218JC001/HADOPTEDSADOPTED

Adopt the following Senate amendments:

HB0218SS001/A

Delete the following Senate amendments:

HB0218S2001/A

Further amend as follows:

Page 1-line 2 After "fees" insert "and a related tax".

Page 1-line 8 Delete "is" insert "and 31-18-401(a)(ii)(A) and (iii) are".

Page 2-line 4 Delete "25.00" insert "30.00".

Page 2-line 17 Delete "10.00" insert "5.00".

Page 3-line 3 Delete "60.00" insert "50.00".

Page 3-line 6 Delete "80.00" insert "70.00".

Page 3-line 9 Delete "120.00" insert "90.00".

Page 3-After line 9 Insert:

"31-18-401. Registration fees.

(a) Except as otherwise provided, the following fees shall accompany each application for the registration of a commercial vehicle:

(ii) A state registration fee computed as follows:

(A) Commercial vehicles except passenger cars, school buses, house trailers and motorcycles for which the fees shall be computed as provided by W.S. 31-3-101(a)(ii) based on gross vehicle weight pursuant to the following table:

GROSS VEHICLE OR GROSS COMBINATION VEHICLE WEIGHT IN POUNDS	FEE
26,000 - or less	\$180.00 198.00
26,001 - 28,000	195.00 214.50
28,001 - 30,000	210.00 231.00
30,001 - 32,000	225.00 247.50
32,001 - 34,000	250.00 275.00
34,001 - 36,000	275.00 302.50
36,001 - 38,000	300.00 330.00
38,001 - 40,000	325.00 357.50
40,001 - 42,000	350.00 385.00
42,001 - 44,000	375.00 412.50
44,001 - 46,000	400.00 440.00
46,001 - 48,000	425.00 467.50
48,001 - 50,000	450.00 495.00
50,001 - 52,000	475.00 522.50
52,001 - 54,000	500.00 550.00
54,001 - 55,000	512.50 563.75
55,001 - 56,000	525.00 577.50
56,001 - 58,000	550.00 605.00
58,001 - 60,000	575.00 632.50

60,001 - 62,000	600.00 660.00
62,001 - 64,000	625.00 687.50
64,001 - 66,000	650.00 715.00
66,001 - 68,000	675.00 742.50
68,001 - 70,000	700.00 770.00
70,001 - 72,000	725.00 797.50
72,001 - 74,000	750.00 825.00
74,001 - 76,000	775.00 852.50
76,001 - 78,000	800.00 880.00
78,001 - 80,000	825.00 907.50

For weights over eighty thousand (80,000) pounds, the fee shall be ~~eight hundred twenty-five dollars (\$825.00)~~ nine hundred forty-eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$948.75) plus twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each additional two thousand (2,000) pounds or fraction thereof.

(iii) Except as otherwise provided in W.S. 31-18-201(d)(iii), an equalized highway use tax collected by the department in lieu of the county registration fee imposed by paragraph (a)(i) of this section for commercial vehicles or fleets proportionally registered under W.S. 31-18-201(b)(i) and described in W.S. 31-18-201(d)(ii) pursuant to the following table:

VEHICLE OR COMBINATION GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT IN POUNDS	EQUALIZED HIGHWAY USE TAX
26,000-or less	\$ 80.00 88.00
26,001-28,000	100.00 110.00
28,001-30,000	150.00 165.00
30,001-32,000	200.00 220.00
32,001-34,000	250.00 275.00
34,001-36,000	300.00 330.00
36,001-38,000	350.00 385.00
38,001-40,000	400.00 440.00
40,001-42,000	450.00 495.00
42,001-44,000	500.00 550.00
44,001-46,000	550.00 605.00
46,001-48,000	600.00 660.00
48,001-50,000	650.00 715.00
50,001-52,000	700.00 770.00
52,001-54,000	750.00 825.00
54,001-56,000	800.00 880.00
56,001-58,000	850.00 935.00
58,001-60,000	900.00 990.00
60,001-62,000	950.00 1,045.00
62,001-64,000	1,000.00 1,100.00
64,001-66,000	1,050.00 1,155.00
66,001-68,000	1,100.00 1,210.00
68,001-70,000	1,150.00 1,265.00
70,001-72,000	1,200.00 1,320.00
72,001-74,000	1,250.00 1,375.00
74,001-76,000	1,300.00 1,430.00
76,001-78,000	1,350.00 1,485.00
78,001-80,000	1,400.00 1,540.00

For weights over eighty thousand (80,000) pounds, the tax under this paragraph shall be ~~one thousand four hundred dollars (\$1,400.00)~~ one thousand six hundred ten dollars (\$1,610.00) plus fifty dollars (\$50.00) for each additional two thousand (2,000) pounds or fraction thereof." LARSEN, BAKER, WALTERS, BURNS, PETERSON, DRISKILL

ROLL CALL

Ayes: Senator(s) Anselmi-Dalton, Baldwin, Barnard, Boner, Burns, Christensen, Coe, Driskill, Emerich, Hastert, Landen, Nethercott, Pappas, Peterson, Rothfuss, Von Flatern, Wasserburger

Nays: Senator(s) Agar, Anderson, Bebout, Bouchard, Case, Dockstader, Ellis, Hicks, Kinskey, Meier, Moniz, Scott

Excused: Senator Perkins

Ayes 17 **Nays** 12 **Excused** 1 **Absent** 0 **Conflicts** 0

3/3/2017 Assigned Number HEA No. 0121

3/3/2017 H Speaker Signed HEA No. 0121

3/3/2017 S President Signed HEA No. 0121

3/20/2017 Became Law without Governor's Signature

3/20/2017 Assigned Chapter Number

Chapter No. 210 Session Laws of Wyoming 2017